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Dear Committee Clerk, Chair and Vice-Chair, 

 

In response to some concerns raised by Departmental Officials at last week's meeting of the 

Committee, we have submitted a further response on behalf of NIBIPA. 

 

I have also included SIBA's written submission which details the social and economic 

impacts of taprooms in Great Britain, something the Department has been keen to explore 

and I know the Minister will be interested in. 

 

Many thanks, 

William 

 

 
William Mayne  
Bullhouse Brewing Company Ltd 

 



NIBIPA’s Written Submission to the Communities Committee  
March 2021 
 
About 
 
The Northern Ireland Brewery and Independent Pub Association (NIBIPA) is a 
voluntary organisation representing the 30 breweries licensed to operate in Northern 
Ireland (NI). We also include in our membership independent pubs that are not subject 
to a tie. 
 
Summary 
 
In the absence of any evidence for or against taprooms provided by the Department, 
we are submitting our own evidence for consideration by the Committee and the 
Minister. 
 
Department for Communities Concerns 
 
At the most recent meeting of the Communities Committee, Departmental Officials 
raised some concerns regarding taprooms. We have addressed these concerns 
below. 
 
Economic and Social Impacts 
 
We believe the economic and social impacts of taprooms have already been 
addressed in the Society for Independent Brewers (SIBA)’s submission, as well as on 
our website where we looked at jurisdictions around the world where the legislation 
has worked, and where it has failed – (https://craftbeerni.com/case-studies). As SIBA 
said the experiences in GB “have encouraged more people to visit local breweries, 
providing a vital source of revenue, local employment and tourism. They have not 
crowded out local pubs, but strengthened and encouraged customers to seek out their 
products in different venues.” 
 
Taprooms are already operating in Northern Ireland 
 
Many breweries in Northern Ireland already operate successful taprooms through the 
use of occasional licenses. Under an occasional license, taprooms are currently 
permitted to open until 1am and sell any alcoholic product they would like. Breweries 
are asking for the chance to be legislated for and are happy to be limited to the sale 
of products manufactured on the premises, with a closing time of 11pm.  
 
Breweries would be unsuitable premises for taprooms 
 
Breweries throughout the world operate taprooms successfully from industrial estates. 
As SIBA’s written evidence showed, taprooms are instrumental in urban regeneration 
across the world. We believe taproom licenses should be granted in the same way as 
hotel licenses or conference centre licenses. In this regard, opening a taproom would 
be contingent on having planning permission in place for the production of beer. This 
would make operating a standalone taproom in the city centre very difficult due to the 
difficulty in obtaining adequate planning permission for industrial premises in such a 



location. Objections from the locality would be considered as part of the planning 
process. The granting of a taproom license should also be contingent on obtaining a 
license to brew beer from HMRC as well as Environmental Health approval of the 
premises from the local Council. 
 
Many of the breweries that will apply for the new category of license are already 
running successful taprooms on their industrial premises through the use of occasional 
licenses, and have done for many years, with no issue.  
 
Health and safety risks 
 
Concerns were raised regarding deliveries to nearby industrial premises on lorries, 
and the potential risks this may cause. We have always advocated that taprooms are 
completely ancillary to the main purpose of the business, which is the manufacture of 
beer. As a result, the vast majority of visitors to brewery taprooms will be after normal 
working hours during the week and weekends. All of the taprooms currently operating 
under occasional licenses do so in evenings and weekends. As is the case with 
breweries currently running taprooms using occasional licenses, breweries would 
have to meet building control requirements for suitability of premises, adequacy of 
toilet facilities and disability access etc.  
 
Would taprooms extend to cideries and distilleries? 
 
As the trade body for breweries and independent pubs, we do not speak on behalf of 
cideries and distilleries. We have made the case for legislation to allow our members 
to operate taprooms on a permanent basis, rather than having to rely on the use of 
occasional licenses. We believe to futureproof the Bill it may be useful to include other 
producers but we cannot say for certain how that would look in legislation. 
 
It would be easy to make the distinction in legislation to only extend taprooms to 
breweries, as we have a license to manufacture beer granted by HMRC. 
 
Would it be limited to small producers? 
 
Currently in the UK, a small brewery is defined in legislation as one that produces less 
than 60,000HL of beer per year. If the committee was minded to exclude large 
producers, this would be a way around that. However, it is interesting to note that in 
GB, where taprooms are the norm, no multinational producer has opened a small 
facility to allow them to operate a taproom. The infrastructure requirements to open a 
brewery mean that taprooms are an ancillary but necessary component of a successful 
exporting brewery business. 
 
A question for the committee is; if Diageo or Heineken decided to open a 
manufacturing facility in Northern Ireland, with the serious investment that this would 
take, the jobs this would create and the interest this would generate around the world, 
would a taproom at their manufacturing facility be a bad thing or could it become the 
next Guinness Storehouse of Heineken Experience? 
 
 
 



Permitted hours 
 
We have asked to be allowed to operate taprooms from 12pm – 11pm, Monday to 
Sunday. Our main concern is that we may end up with legislation similar to what has 
been implemented in the Republic of Ireland. As we have stated in our evidence 
sessions, and in our written evidence, this legislation has been a resounding failure. 
Creating closing times of 6pm for taprooms provides no incentive for breweries to 
apply for the license. Despite the legislation in ROI being announced in 2018, as of 
now, only 1 brewery has applied for a license. In Northern Ireland, where many 
breweries are already operating taprooms using occasional license, if taprooms had 
to close before 11pm there is no incentive to go for the new license. If this legislation 
does not permit taprooms with 11pm closing time, we believe our members may start 
to use occasional licenses more frequently given the public demand.  
 
Children 
 
Taprooms are important community hubs, and we feel breweries should be allowed to 
apply for a children’s certificate in the same way as other licensed premises. Young 
families are particularly interested in visiting a more laid back environment than a 
traditional pub and we would not want to see them excluded. 
 
Gaming Machines and Live Sport 
 
The intention of our members is not to mimic the environs of a pub or social club. We 
do not envisage any of our members putting gaming machines in to their taprooms, 
as the focus is very much on educating consumers about our products. We would 
welcome a prohibition on gaming machines and live sport if necessary, however this 
is not the case for conference centre licenses and we have not seen a dearth of 
gaming machines popping up at wedding venues, or people taking time out of their 
wedding festivities to watch horse racing. 
 
We feel it would be difficult to write legislation to prohibit live sport and gaming 
machines, but we would be more than happy to work with the Department to include 
these provisions in our written code of conduct. 
 

Proposed amendments 

NIBIPA believes that the Committee should adopt an amendment to create a category 
of licence that allows on and off sales of their own products and collaborative products 
from their premises. This could be achieved through the following amendment: 

1. 52B (1) A local producer’s licence shall authorise- 
1. The sale of intoxicating liquor that is produced from, or collaborated by, 

the production premises 
2. The sale of intoxicating liquor for consumption in the production 

premises. 
2. Remove 52B (2), (3), (4) (5), (7), (8), (9)  in completion.  












